
 
 

CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE (FTC) 
Agenda 
 

Date Wednesday 29 July 2015 
 

Time 12.00 pm 
 

Venue Crompton A Room, Civic Centre, Oldham, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires any advice on 
any item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect 
his/her ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul 
Entwistle or Sian Walter-Browne in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this Agenda is Sian Walter-Browne Tel. 0161 
770 5151 or email  sian.walter-browne@oldham.gov.uk 
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS – Any member of the public wishing to ask a 
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the 
question is submitted to the Contact officer by 12 Noon on Friday 24th July 
2015. 
 
4.  FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may 
record / film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and 
the press are not lawfully excluded.  Any member of the public who attends 
a meeting and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional 
Services Officer who will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 
 
Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual 
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private 
meeting is held. 
 

Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law 

including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection 
Act and the law on public order offences. 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE (FTC) IS AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 Councillors Akhtar, Brownridge and Stretton 
 

 

Item No  

1   Election of Chair  

 The Trust is asked to elect a Chair for the Municipal year 2015/16. 

2   Apologies For Absence  

Public Document Pack



 
 

3   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

4   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

5   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

6   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4) 

 The Minutes of the Cabinet Sub Committee – Failsworth Trust held on 16th 
October 2012 are attached for approval. 

7   Lower Memorial Park Trust, Failsworth (Pages 5 - 24) 

 



CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE (FTC)  
16/10/2012 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillors Akhtar, Jabbar and Stretton 
 

 

1   ELECTION OF CHAIR   

RESOLVED: That Councillor Stretton be elected Chair of the 
Failsworth Trust Committee for the Municipal year 2012/13. 

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

There were no apologies for absence received.  

3   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

4   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

5   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received.  

6   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on the 30th 
August 2011 be approved as a correct record. 

7   LAND AT HIGHER MEMORIAL PARK / CENOTAPH, 
OLDHAM ROAD, FAILSWORTH  

 

The Trust gave consideration to a report of the Executive 
Director Neighbourhoods which informed Members of the Trust 
Committee of the circumstances surrounding two areas of land 
in Failsworth that were initially acquired using funds generated 
through public subscription. 
Members were advised that the Failsworth War Memorial 
Committee generated funds to erect a Cenotaph on land that 
had become surplus following highway improvements. 
It was reported that following its objective of constructing a 
cenotaph surplus funds were available for use by the Committee 
and it resolved to acquire an additional area of land that would 
be gifted to the Council for purposes of public recreation. The 
land as edged red on the plan was presented to the Committee 
as appendix 1 an area of land at Roman Road.  
At the request of the Committee Officers undertook 
investigations whether an implied trust had been created and as 
such in relation to both areas of land it would be appropriate for 
the land to be formally registered with the Charity Commission. 
The information provided to the Committee provided details of 
the Cenotaph site (edged red at appendix 2) and as the land 
was owned by the Council in its statuary capacity, gifted the land 
for the purposes of being a memorial site in perpetuity is 
unclear.  
It was reported that in respect of the Cenotaph site, whilst the 
Cenotaph was funded by public subscription, the land was 
owned by the Council in its statutory capacity and whether the 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Council in its statutory capacity gifted the and for the purposes 
of being held as a memorial site in perpetuity was unclear.  
It was further reported that in respect of Higher Memorial Park, 
the minutes of the Committee held on the 17th November 1919 
stated that whilst the gift was free of conditions, the land was to 
be used for a specific purpose. Consequently legal advice had 
suggested that the land may be subject to an implied trust.  
Options/Alternatives considered 
Option 1 - Do Nothing. This approach would leave the status of 
both the Cenotaph and Higher Memorial Park open and unclear.  
Option 2 Choose to register the Cenotaph, Higher memorial 
Park or both assets within a charitable Trust. 
RESOLVED: That: 

1. The circumstances surrounding the acquisition and 
management of both Higher Memorial Park and the 
Cenotaph site at Oldham Road be noted. 

2. Officers of the Council be authorised to contact the 
Charity Commission to undertake the necessary 
steps to register both areas of land as shown edged 
red in appendix 1 and appendix 2 only within a 
specific charitable trust.  

3. In the event that the land is registered by the Charity 
Commission, that both parcels of land be managed 
by the Failsworth Trust Committee along with the 
existing charitable assets at Lower Memorial Park 
and the land to the North of the Lancaster Club. 

8   LAND TO THE NORTH OF THE LANCASTER CLUB, 
BROADWAY, FAILSWORTH (FAILSWORTH WEST)  

 

The Cabinet Sub-Committee gave consideration to a report of 
the Executive Director, Neighbourhoods which sought approval 
for the Council in its statutory capacity, to alter the levels of the 
boundary of the Trust land to effectively create a sound 
attenuation bund/screen. 
Members were advised that the Council in its statutory capacity 
had been successful in obtaining outline planning permission 
(PA/332371/12) for land to the south east to the land to the 
North of the Lancaster Club (registered 1136597).  
It was reported that the development proposals included a new 
Goal Soccer Centre and although the design would incorporate 
land owned by the Council in its statutory capacity only in order 
to reduce sound emanating from the facility and maintain the 
private of users of the planned soccer centre, the Goal Soccer 
Centre if the proposition was agreed, would create a bund, a 
mound of earth with a fence which would reduce sound travel. 
It was further reported that whilst the fending would be situated 
in the middle of the bund it was likely to be erected on the 
boundary line and it was likely that the bunding itself would flank 
the land held by the Council in both Trust and Statutory 
capacity. 
Options/Alternatives Considered 

1. Reject the request.  This would mean that the orientation 
of the Soccer Centre would need to be altered slightly, 
taking the facility away from the boundary between the 
two land titles.  This option was not preferred, as it would Page 2



mean that sunlight - at peak times - would affect teams 
(particularly goalkeepers) using the facility. 

2. Accept the request from the Council (in its statutory 
capacity) / developer to create a bund which would 
encroach onto the Trust land.  The encroachment was 
thought to be no more than 2-metres maximum and 
would allow safe construction of the sound attenuation 
facility.  There would be obvious benefits to the users of 
the Trust as sound travel from the Soccer Centre would 
be reduced, as would the risk of balls entering onto the 
Trust land.  Particularly as many of the users of the Trust 
land are dog walkers, this would be welcomed. 

RESOLVED: That the Trust provide authority for the levels 
along the boundary of the Trust land to be altered to create 
a sound attenuation bund/screen. 
The meeting started at 6.00pm and ended at 6.23 
 
 
The meeting started at 6.00pm and ended at  
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 

 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
To obtain approval to a land swap with Oldham Borough Council and approval in principle to 
granting easements and permissions to Bellway Homes Limited for the construction of foul and 
surface water drainage, including a balancing pond, that will facilitate development of the adjacent 
Lancaster Club.  To appoint independent solicitors to act for the Trust in dealing with these matters 
(the costs of which to be borne by OMBC and Bellway Homes respectively).  To approve plans 
produced by the Moston Brook project officer, prepared in conjunction with The Friends of the 
Moston Brook Park, for an improved entrance to the park. 

Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that Trustees agree:  

 The land swap with Oldham Council and authority for the council to submit an application to 
the Charity Commission on behalf of the Trust to enable this to take place. 

 The drainage solution and granting of easements across the Trust’s land. 

 Approve the appointment of independent legal advice in dealing with the land swap, 
easements and permissions (costs to be borne by others) 

 Approve the plans for the upgraded access/entrance.  

 

Report to CABINET SUB COMMITTEE  
 

Lower Memorial Park Trust, Failsworth  
 
Portfolio Holder:  
Cllr J McMahon – Lead Member for Economy & Enterprise  
Cllr D Hibbert – Lead Member for Housing, Planning and Highways 
 
Officer Contact:   Director of Economic Development 
 
Report Authors:   Ben Hill – Principal Regeneration Officer (Ext 5261) 
 
July 2015 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



 

  2 

 

 

 

 

Cabinet Sub Committee        July 2015 
 

Lower Memorial Park Trust, Failsworth  
 

1 Background 
 

In 2012, the council acquired the Lancaster Club site immediately adjacent to the Lower 
Memorial Park as part of a wider arrangement that would ensure the retention of Oldham 
Athletic FC within the borough.  Subsequently, the council obtained outline planning 
consent on the Lancaster Club site for: moving the allotments; the construction of a Goals! 
Soccer Centre to mitigate the loss of the football pitches; the provision of a football pitch at 
an alternative location and the subsequent development of residential on the majority of 
the site.    
 
The council procured a developer for the site through a EU compliant procurement 
process and Bellway was selected. Bellway’s proposals will deliver 142 new homes and 
the conversion of the existing listed building to residential.  They are also required to 
provide parking for the Goals! Soccer Centre. 
 
In order to ensure any conflicts of interest are effectively managed, meetings with the 
Trustees will be administered by the Head of Constitutional Services.  To further ensure 
the best interests of the Trust, consideration of advice and recommendations from 
independent persons will be used where appropriate.  An independent chartered surveyor 
has been commissioned to provide valuations of the land proposed in the ‘swap’ (see 
below).  The surveyor will also be able to assess the commercial value of granting any 
easements.  Independent legal advice will also be required. 

 
2 Current Position 
 
2.1 Proposed Boundary Amendments  
 

  Some boundary anomalies have been identified on site when compared with red edge 
boundary line which forms the legal title.   It is therefore proposed that a land swap takes 
place between the council and The Trust to reflect what is actually on the ground.  This 
will avoid any pieces of land being left redundant with no specific use that would become a 
liability in the future.   The land in question can be seen at appendix 1.  The amount of 
land that the council proposes to offer to the trust is larger and of higher value than the 
land requested from the trust. An independent valuation has been commissioned to 
evidence this and is attached at appendix 2. 

 
2.2  Drainage  
 

As per the Outline Planning Permission (originally obtained by the council), Bellway 
Homes propose that surface water drainage will be dealt with by an attenuation 
pond/feature on part of the trust land. Detailed design of the surface water drainage has 
not been finalised hence the exact design is not yet known.   However, informal 
discussions have taken place with the Moston Brook Project Officer who has indicated 
that the pond would be of benefit, as it would increase bio-diversity in the Memorial Park.  

 
Bellway also need to connect their development into the foul sewer on Park Avenue and 
this requires an easement and permissions to carry out the work across Memorial Park 

Page 6



 

  3 

land.  The financial implications of this (ie what Bellway will pay to the Trust for the 
granting the easement and permissions to undertake the works) will be assessed 
independently for the Trust when the designs have been finalised.  The Trust will also 
need legal representation to act for them in concluding these agreements. 

2.3       Proposals for Entrance/Friends Group 
 
            Moston Brook Friends of the Park group have raised circa £20,000 to create an     

improved entrance to Moston Brook adjacent to the new allotments.  
           
            It is proposed to have an open/close gate to stop motorbikes gaining access, a fully paved 

and accessible smooth surface, the existing gate replaced with a wooden gate and a 
carved stone with ‘Moston Brook’ embedded in the stone wall. There would be a 3m wide 
gated vehicle access to enable maintenance vehicles to access the park.  Public sessions 
have been held in the park and letters distributed to everyone on Park Avenue. 
Presentations have been held and shown strong support for the proposal.    

 
3 Options/Alternatives 
 
3.1 Option 1 – Approve the land swap, granting of easements and new access facilities. 
 

3.2 Option 2 - Do not approve the recommendations.  This would leave some land which would 

become un-managed.  It would also prevent a source of income to the Trust. 

 

4 Preferred Option 

 

4.1 Option 1 is the preferred option. 

 

5.  Consultation 

 

5.1  Two of the trustees were briefed on 4th June and supported the proposals.  Local residents 

were consulted on the wider development plans when the outline consent was granted, no 

objections were received.  Specific consultation was undertaken for the improved park 

access which was well received.  

       

6 Financial Implications  
 

6.1 Capital Costs 
 There are no capital costs associated with the proposed land swap. 
 

6.2 Capital Receipts 
 The proposal would be a land swap involving asset number 1143 which has a current net 

book value of £6,500 as at 31st March 2015 in the Council’s asset register and balance 

sheet.  The asset is classed as a community asset. 

 

 The net book value represents the value that the asset is held at.  Any profit or loss on sale 

would be reflected in the accounts.   

 

 Although the value of the land to be passed to the Trust is of higher value than that to be 

received, no capital receipt is proposed as the values involved are minimal. 

 

Page 7



 

  4 

6.3 Revenue Implications 
 There are no revenue implications for the Council arising from the swap as the land 

received will form part of the site leased to Bellway Homes for residential development.  If 

the land swap did not go ahead then the Council would technically retain responsibility for 

piece of land effectively used by the Memorial Trust and, although unlikely, the Trust could 

seek that the Council takes responsibility for maintaining it. 

 

[Claire Gibb Interim Finance Manager] 

 

7 Legal Services Comments 

Section 6 of the Trusts of Land and Appointment of Trusts Act 1996 provides a general 
statutory authority for the disposal of land held in trust.  As an exchange of land represents 
a disposal of land it must satisfy section 117 of the Charities Act 2011 and the Council in its 
capacity as charitable trustee must obtain an independent report and valuation advice from 
an independent surveyor. Any proposed exchange must be for the same or greater 
monetary value and that the exchanged land can be used for the charitable objects of the 
trust. The Council as charitable trustee is under a legal obligation to ensure that the 
proposed land exchange is in the best interests of the charity and having considered the 
independents surveyors report that the terms on which the disposition are to be made are 
the best that can reasonably be obtained for the charity.  Finally if as in this case the land 
being put forward to be exchanged is the property of the Council then the Council are 
deemed to be a connected person and an order of the Charity Commission must be 
obtained. 
 
If the Charity Commission are minded to give consents to: the proposed land exchange with 
the council, it will in effect, better reflect the position on the ground; if the Trust grants 
easements and consents to Bellway Homes to deliver their foul and surface water drainage 
solutions, this will increase bio-diversity within the Park, upgrade pathways and provide the 
Trust with a capital receipt which can be used to carry out further improvements within the 
park;  consent for the improved access works to be carried out under the auspices of the 
Moston Brook Project Officer, will enable more people to access the park and enjoy its 
amenity value.    (Peter Oliver) 

8 Cooperative Agenda 

 
8.1 The granting of easements will provide income to the trust that can be used to further 

improve the park.  This will improve the amenity value of the area for members of the 
general public. (Ben Hill) 

 

9 Human Resources Comments 

 
9.1 None arising from this report.  
 

10 Risk Assessments 
 
10.1 None arising from this report.   
 

11 IT Implications 

 
11.1 None arising from this report.  

Page 8



 

  5 

 

12 Property Implications 

 
12.1 The recommendations outlined above will help facilitate the development of new homes at   

the Lancaster Club site.  The development of the Lancaster Club site fully meets the 
objectives set out in Oldham’s Residential Development Framework around providing 
higher quality, higher value aspirational homes in the borough.  (Bryn Cooke 

13 Procurement Implications 
 
13.1  None arising from this report. 
 
14 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
14.1 No direct implications arising from this report. 
 
15 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 
 
15.1 The source of income to the trust will maintain and improve access to the area.   (Ben Hill) 

 
16 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
16.1  No 
 
17 Key Decision 
 
17.1 No  
 
18 Forward Plan Reference 
 
18.1 N/A 

 
19 Background Papers 
 
20.1 Cabinet Report – 30 March 2015 
  

20 Appendices 
1. Proposed land swap plan and site plan 
2. Independent valuation report 

Page 9



 

  6 

Appendix 1 
 
 

 

 

P
age 10



 

 

Valuation & Appraisal 

 
For Disposal/Transfer of Ownership Purposes  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

On the Property 

Situate and Known As 

 

Land off Broadway 

Adjacent Lancaster Club & Lower Failsworth Memorial Land 

Failsworth 

Manchester 

M35 0DX

Page 11



VALUATION AND APPRAISAL 

FOR DISPOSAL/TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP PURPOSES  

 

On the Property Situate and Known as 

 

Land off Broadway 

Adjacent Lancaster Club & Lower Failsworth Memorial Land 

Failsworth 

Manchester 

M35 0DX 

 

Prepared on behalf of:   Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council 

Civic Centre 

West Street 

Oldham 

OL1 1UT 

        

Reference:     BN/V 450     

 

Prepared by:     Breakey & Nuttall 

      Chartered Surveyors 

      12 Salmon Fields Business Village 

      Royton 

Oldham 

      OL2 6HT 

 

Date:      9th July 2015  

Page 12



CONTENTS 

1 Introduction ................................................................................................................................. 1 
2 Executive Summary....................................................................................................................... 1 
3 Situation ...................................................................................................................................... 2 
4 Description ................................................................................................................................... 2 
5 Site Areas ..................................................................................................................................... 3 
6 Services ....................................................................................................................................... 3 
6 Tenure and Occupational Agreements ............................................................................................ 3 
7 Interest to be Valued .................................................................................................................... 3 
8 Planning ....................................................................................................................................... 3 
9 Business Rates/Council Tax ............................................................................................................ 4 
10 Roads and Access ......................................................................................................................... 4 
11 Condition ..................................................................................................................................... 4 
12 Environmental Matters ................................................................................................................. 5 
13 Contamination ............................................................................................................................. 5 
14 Remarks and Opinion .................................................................................................................... 5 
15 Valuation Commentary ................................................................................................................. 6 
16 Valuation ..................................................................................................................................... 7 
17 Valuation Considerations .............................................................................................................. 7 
18 Compliance .................................................................................................................................. 8 

 

 

APPENDICES 

1. Photographs 

2. Plans 

3. Schedule of Comparable Information 

4. Terms & Conditions

Page 13



1 

 

1 Introduction 

In accordance with instructions received from Mr Ben Hill of Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council, 

and confirmed in our letter of 13
th

 January 2015, and subsequently updated by Mr Hill on 27
th

 January 

2015 and 22
nd

 June 2015, we confirm that inspections of the above mentioned pieces of land were 

undertaken on Thursday 22
nd

 January 2015 and Tuesday 3
rd

 February 2015, and we have pleasure in 

submitting the following valuation and appraisal report for transfer of ownership purposes, prepared 

in accordance with our standard terms of engagement sent with our letter of 13
th

 January 2015, and 

also included in the appendix to this report, and also in compliance with the Royal Institution of 

Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Valuation – Professional Standards incorporating the International 

Valuation Standards (the Red Book), specifically UK GN7 in accordance with Part 7, Section 119(i) of 

the Charities Act 2011. 

A copy of the instruction letter is included in the appendix to this report, along with a copy of client’s 

acknowledgement of instructions. 

The Freehold interest in the land identified within this report has been valued in accordance with 

instructions. 

We are instructed to provide the following: 

 Market Value (MV) 

We report as follows: 

 

2 Executive Summary 

 2 pieces of land extending in total to 0.21 hectare (0.52 acre) or thereabouts 

 Situated between grounds of Lancaster Club and adjoining Memorial Land 

 Freehold tenure assumed 

 Plot A: Wooded amenity land – 0.15 hectare (0.38 acre) 

 Plot B: Amenity land – 0.055 hectare (0.14 acre) 

 Situated off Broadway and close to residential areas 

 Market Value – Plot A: £5,000 

 Market Value – Plot B: £4,500 

 Date of Inspection: 22
nd

 January 2015 and 3
rd

 February 2015 

 Date of Valuation: 9
th

 July 2015  

 

 

 

Page 14



2 

 

3 Situation 

The 2 pieces of land are situated to the west of Broadway (A663) and to the east of, and above, 

Moston Brook, on the south western edge of the Borough of Oldham.  They are both on the north 

side of the grounds of the Lancaster Sports & Social Club and the south side of the adjoining area of 

open land and allotments, on the north west side of the Failsworth district of the Borough. 

Surrounding properties and land use includes the playing fields, sports grounds and car parks of the 

Lancaster Club along with the recreational area, allotments, paths and tracks of the Lower Memorial 

Park and Moston Brook. 

Oldham is a major regional town located within Greater Manchester and the subject land is situated 

around 5 miles to the north east of Manchester City Centre, and 1 mile to the south of the M60 

Manchester Orbital Motorway.  The town is situated on the Manchester Metrolink line to Rochdale, 

which runs just to the south of the subject land, and there is a station nearby in Failsworth. 

 

4 Description 

The property comprises 2 pieces of land situated between the grounds of the Lancaster Sports & 

Social Club and the adjoining open amenity land of the Lower Memorial Park, as well as an area of 

allotments.  They are more particularly outlined in red and labelled A and B in the identification plans 

in the appendix to this report. 

Plot A – Comprises the north western corner of the grounds of the Lancaster Club and extends to 0.15 

hectare (0.38 acre) or thereabouts.  It is an area of unmanaged woodland with tree and undergrowth 

cover dissected by worn footpaths and some redundant fencing.  It is roughly triangular in shape, but 

with a curved base to its south eastern boundary.  It includes a sloping area that is part of the upper 

valley side to Moston Brook, as well as a more level area between sports fields and the open 

recreational land.  At its north western tip it includes a small section of old timber retained steps 

forming part of a footpath leading down to the brook. 

It is considered that due to its size, shape, nature and location, this piece of land is suitable only for 

amenity use. 

Plot B – Extends to 0.055 hectare (0.14 acres) or thereabouts and comprises a roughly triangular 

shaped parcel of land comprising a small part of the northern edge of the surfaced car park to the 

Lancaster Club, along with part of the bordering embankment and land, which is covered in 

undergrowth and a number of mature trees.  It is situated within a few meters of the access driveway 

from Broadway into the Lancaster Club, and is also close to the allotment gardens that front onto 

Broadway.  It is a fairly level site apart from the topography of the embankment border.   

It is considered that due to its size, shape, nature and location, this piece of land is suitable only for 

amenity or landscaping use.   

 

 

 

Page 15



3 

 

5 Site Areas 

We understand that the extent of the land is approximately as shown outlined in red on the 

identification plans in the appendix to this report.  We have estimated the land areas by transposing 

the boundaries, by sight from unscaled plans provided to us, to the Ordnance Survey and then 

calculating the areas using Promap and triangulation.  Accordingly, the areas have been estimated to 

be approximately as follows: 

Plot A – 0.15 hectare (0.38 acre) or thereabouts  

Plot B – 0.055 hectare (0.14 acre) or thereabouts 

 

6 Services 

We have not been able to make specific enquiries with the relevant statutory undertakers in the time 

available regarding the availability, capacity or location of mains services.  However, none were noted 

during the course of our inspection and for the purposes of this report, we have assumed that there 

are no services or drainage to Plot A, but that mains, services and drainage may well be available in 

close proximity to Plot B. 

 

7 Tenure and Occupational Agreements 

We have not had sight of the title deeds and have not been provided with a report on title.  However, 

we understand that the land is Freehold and for the purpose of this report, we have assumed that this 

information is correct.  It is, however, subject to formal confirmation by solicitors. 

We are not aware of any grazing licences, leases, tenancies or any other occupational agreements 

affecting the land, and for the purpose of this report we have assumed that both pieces of land are 

effectively vacant. 

We have not inspected any documents of Title or Leases other than specifically referred to and for the 

purpose of this valuation we have assumed that the subject interest is unencumbered and free from 

any unduly onerous or unusual liabilities, easements, restrictions, outgoings, covenants or rights of 

way. 

 

7 Interest to be Valued 

Further to the previous paragraph, it is assumed that there is good Freehold title to the land and it is 

this interest that is the subject of the valuation, upon the assumption of vacant possession. 

 

8 Planning 

Plot A is situated within an area of “Other Protected Open Land” whereas Plot B appears to be within 

an area that is not allocated for any particular purpose, but immediately adjoining an area of “Other 

Page 16



4 

 

Protected Open Land”, on the current development plan for the Borough of Oldham, which was 

adopted in April 2012. 

For the purpose of this report, it is assumed that there are no adverse town planning, local authority 

or other proposals which will be of direct detriment. 

Our valuation also assumes that all appropriate planning consents have been obtained for the existing 

use of the property. 

 

9 Business Rates/Council Tax 

We have been unable to trace any separate assessments for the subject pieces of land, but it is 

assumed that Plot A is included within the current business rates assessment for the Lancaster Club. 

 

10 Roads and Access 

There is no vehicular access currently to Plot A, although it does appear to be accessible via public 

footpaths.  There is currently vehicle access to Plot B, but it is of a limited nature via the car park to 

the Lancaster Club and is not directly accessible from the public highway.   

For the purpose of this report we have assumed that there are no rights of vehicle access to either 

Plot A or Plot B. 

 (Information provided in paragraphs 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10 above should be verified by solicitors). 

 

11 Condition 

The property comprises two pieces of amenity and/or woodland with no marked site boundaries. We 

have not been provided with details of any site investigation works to identify the nature of the 

substrata.   

Our inspection of the land was by no means a survey and it is therefore beyond the scope of this 

report to comment in detail upon ground conditions. 

We have not inspected every part of the land and in particular, have not inspected parts which were 

covered, unexposed or inaccessible and for the purpose of this report, such parts have been assumed 

to be in good condition. 

We cannot express an opinion about or advise upon the condition of un-inspected parts and this 

report should not be taken as making any implied representation or statement about such parts.  

Furthermore we have not tested any of the drains or other services and, for the purpose of this 

report, we have assumed that they are all in good condition and operating satisfactorily.  No 

allowances have been made for replacement or repair. 

We have not arranged for any investigation to be carried out to determine whether or not any 

deleterious or hazardous materials have been used or deposited at the land, or have since been 

Page 17



5 

 

incorporated and we are therefore unable to report that the land is free from risk in this respect.  For 

the purpose of this report, we have assumed that such investigation will not disclose the presence of 

any such materials to a significant extent. 

 

12 Environmental Matters 

We are unaware of any adverse environmental issues likely to have a material effect upon the land, 

although there are former landfill sites in the area and parts of the subject land could possibly include 

former landfill.  They are also close to the flood zone of Moston Brook. 

We have not been provided with environmental assessments and our comments are based upon our 

knowledge of the area and our superficial inspection of the land and immediate environs. According 

to the Environment Agency the land is not within an area which could be affected by flooding. A copy 

of the flood map is included within the appendix to this report. However, this does not cover surface 

water flooding, the occurrence of which is becoming increasingly common and, accordingly, the 

subject land could be at risk from such pluvial flooding which could affect both value and cost of 

insurance. 

We are unaware of any mining related problems in the immediate vicinity but this is subject to 

confirmation by Solicitors carrying out standard mine working searches.  

 

13 Contamination 

The property comprises 2 pieces of land adjoining, or including protected open land, but close to 

residential and commercial areas.  We have no reason to anticipate any undue risk of land 

contamination or contaminatory land use. 

We are not aware of the content of any environmental audit or other environmental investigation or 

soil survey which may have been carried out on the property and which may draw attention to 

contamination or the possibility of any such contamination. 

We have not carried out any investigation into past or present uses either of the property or any 

neighbouring land to establish whether there is potential for contamination to the subject from these 

uses or sites and, therefore, assume that none exists. 

However should it be established subsequently that contamination, seepage or pollution exists at the 

property, or on any neighbouring land, or that the premises have been or are being put to a 

contaminative use, this might reduce the value now reported. 

 

14 Remarks and Opinion 

The property comprises 2 parcels of land situated between the grounds of the Lancaster Sports & 

Social Club and the adjoining amenity land and allotments of the Lower Memorial Park.   

The larger of the 2 pieces of land, Plot A, is a mainly wooded area of amenity land with no vehicle 

access.  Its proximity to surrounding residential areas and the proposed development on neighbouring 

Page 18



6 

 

land could create some hope value that residential development may be possible at some future date, 

but this could be tempered by planning policies covering protected open land.  Consequently, it is our 

opinion that it is suitable only for amenity use and has no realistic current development value or 

potential. 

Plot B is a smaller parcel of land bordering and including a small part of the Lancaster Club car park.  

Once again, it is considered that due to its size, nature and location, this piece of land is only suitable 

for amenity or landscaping use.   

The market for land has been detrimentally affected by the recessionary economic trends ensuing 

from the banking crisis, and in line with the property market as a whole, has continued to decline over 

the past 7 years affecting both occupier and investment demand.  Recent cutbacks to the public 

sector have further weakened confidence and the market, particularly in northern boroughs such as 

Oldham, has been adversely affected.  There has been a recent upturn in sentiment, however, and 

agricultural and grazing land values are, anecdotally, increasing throughout the country, but prospects 

for the market continue to be negatively affected by continuing recession in the Eurozone, 

uncertainty with regard to continuing EEC membership and concerns with regard to the sustainability 

of the current UK economic recovery.  This lack of confidence is being exacerbated by a lack of 

liquidity and difficulties in securing bank finance.   Accordingly extended marketing periods can be 

required for disposal. 

 

15 Valuation Commentary 

Our instructions, as confirmed in our letter and terms dated 13
th

 January 2015, are to provide our 

opinion of Market Value (MV) of the land.  To comply with these instructions we have applied both a 

market and a rental approach with due consideration given to the level of prices achieved and being 

quoted for land in surrounding areas. 

Schedules of comparable information are included within the appendix to this report, however, 

transactional information with regard to land similar to the subject plots is fairly scarce as can be 

noted from the schedule. 

Agricultural and grazing land values are, anecdotally, increasing throughout the country, but values 

are still within a range of £5,000 to £10,000 per acre.  However, smaller parcels of land, particularly 

those suitable for equestrian purposes and close to urban areas can command a higher rate per acre, 

particularly if there could be potential for additional commercial usage, or “hope” value due to 

proximity to residential areas.  This contrasts with a value range of around £100,000 to £400,000 per 

acre for sites with definable commercial or development potential.  

Accordingly, we have looked at sales of, and market information for, smaller parcels of land without 

specific development plans, but with some reflecting possible hope and future development value 

and these are listed within the comparable schedules within the appendix to this report.  They 

demonstrate a range of values for smaller plots of amenity land from £3,500 per acre to over £40,000 

per acre.  Particularly of note within the schedule is the July 2013 auction sale of 0.31 acres of land 

close to Buckstones Road in Shaw, at a price equating to just over £29,000 per acre, the July 2011 

auction sale of 0.2 acres close to Hunt Lane in Chadderton, at a price equating to £20,000 per acre and 

Page 19



7 

 

the December 2012 auction sale of a much larger piece of land (2.2 acres) in Middleton at a price 

equating to £3,636 per acre.  Accordingly, having regard to the market information available and also 

having regard to the location, size, quality and potential of Plots A and B, rates of £13,000 per acre 

and £30,000 per acre respectively are considered to be appropriate, which equates to the Market 

Values reported, after slight rounding of £5,000 and £4,500 respectively. 

Accordingly, we submit the following valuations, but it must be noted that difficult market conditions 

are currently being experienced where it is apparent that competitive pricing and prolonged 

marketing periods are necessary to achieve successful sales.  Market values have been adversely 

affected and there is a risk that such may deteriorate further before matters stabilise.   

It is recommended that an overage clause be included in any contract for the sale of the subject land. 

 

16 Valuation 

It is our considered opinion that the Market Value of the aforementioned land, in its existing 

condition, subject to the foregoing remarks and assumptions and with the benefit of vacant 

possession is in the sum of: 

PLOT A - £5,000 (FIVE THOUSAND POUNDS) 

PLOT B - £4,500 (FOUR THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED POUNDS) 

 

17 Valuation Considerations 

In arriving at our opinion of value we have had regard to a number of factors including the following: 

Strengths 

 Within urban area 

 Possible amenity/woodland usage  

 Within popular recreational area 

 Close to residential districts 

 Rarely available Freehold land 

Weaknesses 

 Plot A – Within area of protected open land 

 Plot B – Narrow restrictive shape  

 Possible landfill areas  

 Isolated land with no road access 

Page 20



8 

 

 Ill-defined sites away from public roads 

 Irregular shaped parcels of land 

 Lack of confidence in property market 

Valuation Uncertainty 

The current turmoil and uncertainty in the world’s financial markets has resulted in commercial and 

residential properties selling in significantly reduced quantities with virtually no activity in some areas.  

Often Vendors are choosing not to go to the market until conditions improve.  Many Purchasers are 

also choosing not to buy, in the expectation that market conditions will continue to deteriorate and 

they will be able to purchase more favourably in the future.  Transactions are also failing due to 

current difficulties in funding acquisitions. 

The lack of market activity and the resulting lack of market evidence means that it is not generally 

possible to value with as high a degree of certainty as would be the case in a more stable market with 

a good level of market evidence. 

 

18 Compliance 

We confirm that this report has been prepared by Christopher Breakey BSc MRICS – RICS Registered 

Valuer, acting as an independent valuer. 

We confirm that this valuation has been prepared in accordance with the Royal Institution of 

Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Valuation – Professional Standards incorporating the International 

Valuation Standards (the Red Book). 

The relevant definitions and assumptions are as defined in the attached copy of our Terms of 

Engagement for Valuations. 

This report is dated the 09
th

 July 2015 

 

 

Signed by:  ………………………………………  

  C Breakey BSc MRICS 

 

  For and on behalf of: 

  Breakey & Nuttall 

Page 21



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  APPENDICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



 

 

PLOT A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



 

 

PLOT B 

  

 

Page 24


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	7 Lower Memorial Park Trust, Failsworth
	Report&Photos.090715[3]


